ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
March 1, 2012
9:03 a.m

VEVMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Welechowski, Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan, Vice Chair
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Cathy G essel

VEVBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 198

" An Act est abl i shing pr ocedur es relating to i ssuance,
suspension, or revocation of certification of police officers by
the police standards council; nmking certain court service
officers subject to certification by the police standards
council; making confidential certain information that personally
identifies a police officer; relating to requesting or requiring
police officers to submt to |lie detector tests; repealing a

provi sion exenpting certain police officers from a prohibition
against requiring certain enployees to submit to lie detector
tests; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 29

"An Act relating to the reporting and analysis of certain
information relating to tax credits, deductions, exclusions,
exenptions, deferrals, and other tax expenditures; and providing
for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 198

SHORT TI TLE: PCLI CE OFFI CER PROTECTI ONS/ CERTI FI CATI ON
SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 1, 2012



02/ 17/ 12 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 17/ 12 (S) STA, JUD
03/01/ 12 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

THOVAS PRESLEY, Staff
Senator Bill W el echowski
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 198 on behalf of the sponsor.

TOM CLEMONS, Director
Al aska Associ ation of Chiefs of Police
Seward, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 198.

DAVE SEXTON, Executive Director
Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 198.

JAKE METCALFE, Executive Director

Publ i c Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on (PSEA), Local 803
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 198.

CHRI S G FFORD, Muni ci pal Chapter President
Publ i c Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on and

Ser geant

Juneau Pol i ce Depart nent

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 198.

JAY SEARS, Al aska State Trooper and

Western Vice President

Publ i c Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on ( PSEA)

Nonme, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 198.

MARK MEW Chief of Police

Anchor age, Al aska and

Menber

Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 198

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 1,

2012



THOMAS ROBSON, Court Services Oficer (CSO

Al aska State Troopers and

Menber

Publ i c Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on ( PSEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 198.

JEFFERY M TTMAN

Executive D rector

American G vil Liberties Union (ACLU) of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Voi ced concerns about sections of SB 198.

AARON DANI ELSON, Presi dent

Airport Police and Fire Oficer (APFO and

Vi ce President

Publ ic Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on (PSEA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support SB 198.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9: 03: 27 AM

CHAIR BI LL W ELECHOASKI called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:03 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators @ essel, Kookesh, Meyer, and Chair
W el echowski . Senator Paskvan arrived shortly thereafter.

SB 198- POLI CE CFFI CER PROTECTI ONS/ CERTI FI CATI ON

9:03:51 AM

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI announced that the first bill would be SB
198, which provides police officers with inproved due process
procedures when faced with disciplinary actions, and provides
better protection of their personal information, such as hone
addr esses.

THOVAS PRESLEY, staff, Senator Bill Welechowski, introduced SB
198 on behalf of the sponsor. He read fromthe foll ow ng sponsor
st at enent :

The intent of SB 198 is to ensure that public servants
who are entrusted wth protecting Alaskans, are
afforded due process and protections when facing
all egations of msconduct. First, SB 198 allows for
suspensi on of a police of ficer's certificate.
Currently, Al aska |aw does not provide for the Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 1, 2012



Police Standards Council to suspend certificates, only

to revoke them Revocation of a license has severe
consequences; officers may no |onger practice in the
state and, for all intents and purposes, |oses their

livelihood as a result. Suspension is one way to
discipline, yet retain police officers.

Section 2 sets the standard for evidence when
considering revocation of an officer's certification
The new standard woul d be cl ear and convi nci ng.

Section 3 nmkes it wunlawful to suspend or revoke a
certificate or refuse to grant one based on a
di sciplinary action against the officer that has been
reversed or renoved.

Section 4 adds court service officers to the
definition of "police officer.” These court service
officers already perform the functions of certified
officers. They carry guns, nmake arrests, and serve
warrants. Including these people under the definition
of police officers will make for streamined training
and liability coverage.

Section 5 prohibits an enployer from discrimnating
against police officers in the case that an officer
refuses to take a lie detector test. Studies have
shown that the results of a polygraph can vary greatly
based on environnment. One study by the Ofice of
Technol ogy f ound t hat al t hough t he pol ygr aph
instrunment itself 1is essentially the sane for al
applications, the purpose of the exam nation, type of
i ndi vidual tested, examner training, setting of the
exam nation, and type of questions asked, anong other
factors, can differ substantially. The instrunent
cannot itself detect deception.

Section 6 allows for a police officer to refuse taking
a |lie detector test. It makes t hat deci si on
confidential. It may not be recorded on the police
officer's personnel file or enploynent record.

Section 7 makes photographs and hone addresses
confidential wunless an office voluntarily authorizes
their release. |Instances of police being stalked
because of the public availability of this information

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 1, 2012



have been recorded. This section would make it harder
for those seeking to harmofficers and their famlies.

Section 8 repeals a section in current statute that
exenpts police officers from protections against
taking a lie detector test.

9:07: 38 AM
CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI asked if other states allowed for suspension
rat her than revocation of a police certificate.

MR. PRESLEY said there were 11 states that allow for suspension
of a certificate.

CHAIR W ELECHOWNSKI asked how many states provided polygraph
protection for police officers.

MR. PRESLEY said that four states did.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the bill provided for additional
training for court service officers.

MR. PRESLEY did not know if it would require nore training; SB
198 allows court service officers to receive training that is
al ready in place.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the court officers would be eligible
for a pay increnent.

MR PRESLEY said he could not address that issue.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if other public servants have simlar
protection of personal information.

MR. PRESLEY offered to find out.
CHAI R W ELECHOMBKI noted the arrival of Senator Paskvan.

9:10: 21 AM
SENATOR KOOKESH asked if a pol ygraph was done pre-enpl oynent.

MR. PRESLEY said he thought pre-enploynent polygraphs would be
al | oned under the bill.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked if University of Al aska canpus security
per sonnel were covered under the |egislation.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 1, 2012



MR. PRESLEY said they were.
SENATOR KOOKESH asked if there was any opposition to SB 198.

MR. PRESLEY spoke of concerns from the Department of Public
Safety regarding termnation issues and back pay.

9:11: 53 AM

TOM CLEMONS, Director of Al aska Association of Chiefs of Police,
testified in opposition to SB 198. He shared his background and
the history of the Alaska Police Standards Council (APSC). He
related that APSC provides training, hi gh  prof essi onal
standards, and help with liability insurance qualification. He
stated that APSC has no history of being an outside influence
trying to tell police how to do their job. APSC maintains high
standards for public safety officers and wishes to maintain an
honorable standard in order to provide professional ©police
officers to the state and keep the public's respect. Oficers
were not decertified unless they reached a level that warranted
that action. He shared a story about trusting police officers.

9:17:49 AM

SENATOR KOOKESH asked what process was used to enable M.
Clenons to represent his organization and testify against the
bill.

MR. CLEMONS said there was informal communication anongst the
board nenbers.

SENATOR KOOKESH requested nore i nformation.
MR. CLEMONS reiterated that an informal process was used.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked if M. O enons had had a change to read
all nine sections of the bill. He asked if there were certain
sections M. Clenons particularly disagreed with.

CHAIR W ELECHOWBKI  sunmarized Section 1 of the bill. He
suggested it gives the option of suspension rather than
revocation, which he termed the "death penalty"” for an officer.
He stated that Section 1 provided options.

MR. CLEMONS agreed that it would provide APSC with nore options;
however, nost decertifications are for nore serious offenses. He
pointed out that there were reciprocal agreenents wth other
states that recognize Al aska's decertification program

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 1, 2012



CHAIR W ELECHOMNSKI urged M. denons to rethink his opposition
to Section 1. He maintained that it did not require suspension.

He addressed Section 2, which deals with the standard of "clear
and convincing evidence." He asked M. Cdenons if he thought
t hat standard shoul d not apply.

MR. CLEMONS said he believed the council does that now He
related his experience on the review commttee that nade
deci sions on decertification. He enphasized that if an officer
has violated the trust of the public he or she should be
decertified.

CHAI R W ELECHOWNSKI agreed. He argued that he does not want to
take away licenses unless there is a standard of proof. He
explained three standards of proof: preponderance of the
evi dence, clear and convincing evidence, and beyond a reasonabl e
doubt. He wondered why putting this standard into statute would
be a bad thing.

MR. CLEMONS opined that unless the violation reached the |evel
of decertification it was not undertaken.

9:24:28 AM

CHAIR W ELECHOABKI  explained Section 3 which says in an
arbitration case that has been reversed, deference to that
decision must be given. He asked if there was a problem wth
t hat .

MR. CLEMONS tal ked about collective bargai ning decisions which
m ght not be related to the violation. APSC is only interested
in what the officer did.

DAVE SEXTON, Executive Director, Al aska Police Standards Counci

(APSC), testified in opposition to SB 198, which he said inpacts
the current policies and procedures of APSC and the current
hiring and retention practices of sone |aw enforcenent agencies.
He sunmarized the mssion statement of APSC, to produce and
maintain highly trained and positively notivated professional
officers capable of neeting contenporary |aw enforcenent
standards of performance. He |isted the core services provided
by APSC. In cases of msconduct by a certified policy officer

APSC mekes a determination whether certification should be
revoked. APSC nonitors conpliance with current regulations and
| egi slation, develops, nonitors, and revises |aw enforcenent
training, and assists academ es and departnments with funding for
acadeny training. It funds specialized and advanced training for

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 1, 2012



police departments, determnes certificate eligibility for all
police, probation, and correctional officers, and issue the
appropriate level of certification. APSC provides pre-enploynent
pol ygraph and psychol ogical testing for snmaller agencies across
t he state.

MR. SEXTON enphasized that SB 198 directly affects APSC
specifically by neutering several of the core services. He
voi ced t hree mai n concer ns. The first was regar di ng
certification. SB 198 would inhibit APSC s ability to decertify
an officer. He stated that in the last ten years, only 63
of ficers have been decertified, a third of which were voluntary
surrendered by the officer. He stressed that out of 3,000 only
40 had their certificate taken. He detailed the decertification
process the council uses. The council is nade of 13 nenbers
sel ected by the governor and affirned by the |legislature. He
termed the board's nmakeup as balanced and trustworthy, whose
primary mssion is the protection of Al askan citizens. He took
issue with the bill's renoving the board s independence and
aut onony.

MR. SECTON described the second area of concern - the use of
pol ygraphs. Currently, the use of polygraphs is found in pre-
enpl oyment and in investigative situations. The bill attenpts to
regul ate this. He said he was not aware of a single
decertification decision that hinged on a polygraph test.

MR. SEXTON addressed a third concern in SB 198, the requirenent
to cease providing photographs of officers in action. M. Sexton
held up a picture of officers who rescued a 12-year-old boy. If
the |anguage passes, such pictures could not be shared. The
| anguage in the bill prohibits showi ng photos of officers in
positive situations. He concluded by stating that APSC opposes
the legislation inits entirety.

9:33: 28 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOMSKI thanked M. Sexton for his service on the
council. He referred to Section 1 and asked if there was a

speci fic problem

MR. SEXTON agreed that Section 1 tal ks about suspension rather
than revocation. He noted the part APSC is opposed to is having
to follow the recommendation of a decision nmade in a separate

enpl oynent hearing. Under this bill, APSC is forced to nake
decisions consistent with that decision. A strength of the
council is that it is autononobus. Currently, APSC is required to

take a termnation recommendation into account, but is not

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 1, 2012



required to follow it. He gave an exanple of an officer who was
sl eeping on duty and the recommendati on was for decertification.
The council disagreed and did not follow up on it. He listed the
types of decisions APSC takes under recommendations when naking
deci si ons.

SENATOR PASKVAN referred to Section 1, line 11, and pointed out
that the wording is "may". It does not mandate anything.

MR. SEXTON agreed, but read, "may follow the filing of an
accusation hearing or decision under Alaska statute and revoke
the certificate of a police officer." He argued, "if revocation
is consistent with that decision.”

SENATOR PASKVAN di sagreed. He used the exanple of the officer
sl eeping on the job. The |anguage says you may have revoked the
certification if it was consistent with the decision, but you
didn't have to do it. He did not think the word "may" woul d have
changed any of the past decertifications.

MR. SEXTON said he understands that the second part of the
section negates the first part.

SENATOR PASKVAN reiterated that he reads it as being
di scretionary.

9:39:57 AM

CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI gquestioned M. Sexton's opposition to
pol ygraph tests not being used, when they have not been used in
recent cases.

MR. SEXTON clarified that polygraph's are being used, but have
not been crucial to council decisions regarding revocation. They
have been used for pre-enploynent and investigation reasons.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked if an arbitrator or a judge reinstates a
police officer, can APSC still revoke the officer's certificate.

MR. SEXTON replied that APSC could still revoke the certificate;
however, it considers broader standards beyond enpl oynent.

SENATOR KOOKESH repeated the questi on.

MR. SEXTON said judges don't rule on the sane issues APSC deal s
Wi t h.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 1, 2012



SENATOR KOCOKESH said he is hearing that APSC feels like the
| egislature is interfering with APSC s duties. He pointed out
that APSC was created by the | egislature.

MR. SEXTON agreed that the legislature has the authority to
offer SB 198, said he has been happy with past |egislation.
However, this bill takes away from the current mssion and core
servi ces of APSC

9:44: 06 AM

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI stressed that the bill does not gut what APSC
does; it puts sideboards on APSC s nission. He asked if M.
Sext on opposes the section that calls for higher standards for
decertification.

MR. SEXTON addressed the standards of evidence in civil matters.
He said he agrees with sonme things in the bill. However, nothing
in current legislation uses "preponderance of evidence". He
reiterated the low nunbers of certificates taken away. He said
he values the ability to keep one class of officers and treat
themall the sane

SENATOR PASKVAN said he struggles with APSC s appeal process. He
asked if APSC would follow the recommendation of a judge who
determ ned an appeal was fl awed.

MR. SEXTON said certainly. He explained how the process works

First, the executive director nmakes a decision on an individual,
whi ch can be appealed to the board if someone disagrees with it.
| f soneone does not agree with the board's decision, then it is
appealed to the courts. This bill injects itself into the mddle
of the process when the decision is related to enploynent
i nfractions.

SENATOR PASKVAN again referred to the use of the word "may" and
questi oned how that would hurt APSC s process.

MR. SEXTON agreed with the interpretation of the word "may," but
di sagreed with the sentence followng it, which he said renoves
APSC s authority.

9:49: 44 AM

SENATOR MEYER requested an opinion on including court officers
inthe bill.

MR. SEXTON did not have a problemw th that.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 1, 2012



SENATOR MEYER asked if Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSO s)
and bailiffs were already included in the bill.

MR. SEXTON said the VPSO s were included, but he did not know
about bailiffs.

SENATOR MEYER wondered how the |ow nunber of decertifications
conpares with other states.

VR. SEXTON didn't know. He said there is a nationw de
organi zation that has that information

9:51: 50 AM

JAKE WMETCALFE, Executive Director, Public Safety Enployees
Associ ation (PSEA), Local 803, testified in support of SB 198.
He listed nenbers in his organization. He maintained that a
strong APSC protects all Alaskans. He said he believed
suspensi on or revocation of a police officer's certificate nust
be based on a high standard of proof and with due process. SB
198 gives the council addi ti onal tool s, i nproves their
standards, and creates a regulatory system that respects due
process.

MR. METCALFE agreed with Senator Paskvan's understanding of
Section 1. He spoke to the issue of prior decisions, such as
enpl oyment or arbitration decisions, and agreed that the counci
should be involved. He gave an exanple of the termnation
process and spoke in support of the council's involvenent with
the determination. He also agreed that the mddle standard of
"clear and convincing evidence" be used in revocati on process.

He highlighted the ~court service officers’ certification
requirenents in the bill, and agreed wth the bill's
interpretation. He addressed the pol ygraph issue and agreed with
the provisions in the bill regarding pre-enploynment polygraphs.
He asked that the conmttee support the part in Section 5 of the
bill where it says agencies can't use the police officer's
refusal to submt to a lie detector test in an enploynent
action. In Section 6, PSEA supports the part that mnekes those
requests confidential.

MR. METCALF addressed Section 7 and gave exanples of voluntary
photos and information that would be acceptable wunder this
section.

9:59:10 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 1, 2012



SENATOR MEYER asked if court officers are represented by PSEA
and whet her or not they were certified and adequately trained.

MR. METCALF explained that court officers are enployed by the
Department of Public Safety, and through certification provided
by the bill, they wll receive training. Sone have already
recei ved training.

SENATOR MEYER asked how many court officers there were.
MR. METCALF t hought there were about 90.

SENATOR MEYER asked if court officers could be shown on TV under
this | egislation.

MR. METCALF explained the requirements under the bill. 1t is
nore about the police departnment submitting photos and the need
for an agreenment to do so.

CHAI R W ELECHOASKI said public photos can be put on the news.
However, if soneone were to request a picture of an arresting
officer, the legislation says the officer has an option to say
no. He asked if officers have received threats.

MR. METCALF referred to an exanple about mlitia nenbers staking
out troopers, judges, and other federal officials in Fairbanks.
There is concern about protecting the privacy of officers. Snal
communities present greater risks.

10: 03: 55 AM

CHRIS d FFORD, Muni ci pal Chapter President, Public Safety
Enpl oyees Associ ation, and Sergeant, Juneau Police Departnent,
spoke in support of SB 198. He said the bill is fair and
contains due process. It would raise the standard of revocation.
He stated support for the certification of court service
officers. He gave a personal exanple of a police officer who was
harassed and photos were not released in order to protect the
officer. He thought releasing personal information or photos
could be a safety issue for officers.

10: 07: 09 AM

JAY SEARS, Alaska State Trooper and Wstern Vice President,
Public Safety Enployees Association (PSEA), testified in support
of SB 198. He stated support for every part of SB 198 and said
it corrects sone of the issues facing public safety enployees in
Al aska. He discussed APSC certification which he terned "the
ticket that allows you to becone a police officer.” It affects

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 1, 2012



all 50 states. He said PSEA was not in the business of
protecting bad officers, but did support a fair process. He
spoke of the double jeopardy with the APSC decertification
board. He thought APSC s revoking of a certificate after an
of ficer has been through the hearing process and been awarded
back the certificate, was double jeopardy. He conpared it to the
mlitary. He said he was not disputing the conpetency of APSC.

SENATOR G ESSEL said she was trying to find out what in the
decertification process was broken. She sumarized what M.
Sears said about double jeopardy; an officer could have been
exonerated by the Suprene Court and could still | ose
certification due to a decision by APSC.

MR. A FFORD said that was correct. One such case is comng up in
APSC s May neeti ng.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if that scenario had ever happened.

MR G FFORD did not know. He suggested Senator G essel ask M.
Sext on.

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI agreed with M. G fford' s anal ysis.

10: 13: 55 AM

MARK MEW Anchorage Chief of Police and Menber, Al aska Police
St andards Council (APSC), testified in opposition to SB 198. He
spoke of the inportance of keeping the public's trust. Once in a
while there are "bad apples” and the police have to have the
tools to deal with them He gave exanples of recent cases in
Anchor age.

CHIEF MEW did not see a problem with the ability to suspend
found in Section 1. He suggested clearing up the |anguage
surrounding the word "may." He opined that in Section 2, the
burden of proof should remain at the civil level. Using "clear
and convincing evidence" raises it to the "reasonable doubt™
standard. He said he thought that the existing standard was
adequat e.

CHI EF MEW addressed Section 3 and conpared it other professions,
such as nedicine, where a physician m ght be exonerated in court
froma crine, but have his or her license revoked by a |icensing
board of physicians. He nmaintained that the bill would elimnate
the council's ability to decertify police officers in simlar
instances. He did not think the council should be bound by an

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- March 1, 2012



arbitrator's decision. He could think of two exanples of when an
of ficer was decertified against the arbitrator's w sh.

CH EF MEW addressed the polygraph issue in Section 5 of the bill
and maintained that the ability to conpel a polygraph should
remain. He opined that it has not been done in Anchorage. He
called it a "nuclear deterrent.”

10: 25: 14 AM

THOMAS ROBSQON, Court Services Oficer (CSO, Alaska State
Troopers, and Menber, Public Safety Enpl oyees Associ ation (PSEA)
testified in support of SB 198. He commented on Section 4
regarding certifying court service officers. The training for
CSO s has varied greatly over the past 20 years. The bill would
ensure that mninmum training standards are established. He said
there are currently 60 officers stationed in 11 cities in
Al aska. He noted that CSO s perform functions that are normally
associated with a sheriff's departnent, but unlike a sheriff's
departnment, these officers operate statewde. In addition CSO s
travel to the other 49 states to retrieve Alaskan fugitives. The
three primary functions of CSOs are the transportation of
prisoners, the service of court orders, and the security of the
court facilities.

10: 28: 22 AM

JEFFERY M TTMAN, Executive Director, Anerican Cvil Liberties
Uni on (ACLU) of Al aska, voiced concern about sections of SB 198.
He said he had provided witten testinony to the commttee. He
addressed the need for a nore narrow definition of the
confidentiality issue.

AARON DANI ELSON, President, Airport Police and Fire Oficer
(APFO, Vice President, Public Safety Enployees Association
(PSEA) testified in support SB 198. He reported about past
dealings with the bill in the 90's in order for APFOs to
receive APSC certification. He did not believe that pay was a
factor in the | egislation.

CHAI R W ELECHOMBKI said that SB 198 woul d be set asi de.

10: 30: 40 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair Wel echowski adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Conmttee at 10:30 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 1, 2012



